
          PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
        REGULAR VOTING MEETING 
        TUESDAY, JUNE 14, 2011 
        PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR VOTING MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY 
COUNCIL held on JUNE 14, 2011 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at CITY HALL, 
201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona.  
 
 

  CALL TO ORDER 
 

 Mayor Kuykendall called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m. 
 

        INTRODUCTIONS   
 

 INVOCATION: Reverend Julia McKenna Johnson 
  
 Reverend McKenna Johnson gave the invocation. 
 

  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Councilman Hanna 
 
 Councilman Hanna led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

  ROLL CALL:    
 
  Present:      Absent:
   

Mayor Kuykendall     None 
Councilman Blair    
Councilman Hanna    
Councilman Lamerson   
Councilwoman Linn 
Councilwoman Lopas 
Councilwoman Suttles  

 
 SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS 

 
Councilwoman Linn read her Letter of Resignation. Mayor Kuykendall thanked 
her and said she would be missed. 
  
 
 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 2 
 
I. PRESENTATION 
 
 A. Presentation by Judge Markham re SB 1398 and potential financial impact 

on the City. 
 
  Judge Markham, said that the State Legislature passed a new law which 

added a new $13 surcharge to any fine imposed in court, from parking 
tickets to Driving While under the Influence (DUI’s), etc. He noted that 
there was currently an 84% surcharge.   
 
He showed an overhead and said that a generic $180 fine showed $100 
going to the City Fund. He noted that roughly $11 went to the same fund 
for a $20 parking ticket.  

 
He noted that if the fee was left as is, the revenue to the City would go 
down and he discussed alternatives.  

 
He said that he talked with other judges and as a general rule they were 
going to add the $13 to the other fines. He noted that he had a fine 
booklet with roughly 250 different fines.  

 
He said that there was the suggestion that with parking tickets, a new 
map could be included on how to get to the parking structure and inform 
citizens that it was a state imposed surcharge. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that she did not see much wiggle room unless 
the City took money out of the General Fund. She said that she was 
concerned with what would happen in the future. Judge Markham said 
that the County and cities across the state were having the same 
mandates coming down from above. He said that the way it was going 
that the surcharge would be more than the ticket.    

 
Councilman Hanna asked where Prescott ranked as far as parking tickets 
with other municipalities. Judge Markham said that two to three years ago 
Prescott was on the lighter end of things. He noted that Prescott would 
charge $20 for overtime parking while others charged $50 to $75. 

 
Councilman Hanna said that he would vote to add the $13.00 on to the 
fine. He said that he understood that the Department of Public Safety 
equipment was a necessity. He added that he would be happy to give the 
Border Security $4.00 anytime they wanted it to keep the borders secure.  

 
Councilman Blair said that he wanted to make sure a map was included 
with every ticket. He would vote to add on the $13.00. Judge Markham 
said that the Police Department would print the new parking tickets with a 
statement about the $13.00 and they would include a separate map to the 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 3 
 

parking garage to say that there was free parking. Council Lamerson 
asked who would pay for the maps. Judge Markham said that it would 
come from the City budgets.  

 
Councilman Lamerson said that he did not agree with subsidizing the 
State to help them balance their budget. He and Councilwoman Linn 
agreed to add the $13.00. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if the City was having trouble collecting $20 
tickets, what would happen with a $33 ticket. Judge Markham said that on 
a monthly basis he signed dismissal orders because there was no way to 
tie a car to a person. He said that it was the registered owner of the 
vehicle who got the ticket. He said that if the registered owner did not pay 
the ticket, it would be sent off to collections and the owner would get a 
negative credit report. He said that the amounts of tickets that were paid 
were significant. 
 
Daniel Mattson, Prescott, said that if people chose to violate the parking 
code, they should tack another $1 on for the cost of the map and let them 
pay for that as well. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked when the item would come back to Council.  
Acting City Manager McConnell said it would be the meeting of June 21, 
2011.  

 
Judge Markham said that new parking tickets had to be printed. He said 
that the officers needed to have them by July 20, 2011. 

 
II.   CONSENT AGENDA 

 
CONSENT ITEMS A – B LISTED BELOW MAY BE ENACTED BY ONE 
MOTION. ANY ITEM MAY BE REMOVED AND DISCUSSED IF A 
COUNCILMEMBER SO REQUESTS. 
 
COUNCILMAN BLAIR MOVED TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS II-
A AND II-B; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
A. Adoption of Resolution No. 4083-1153 – A resolution of the Mayor and 

council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the 
City of Prescott Fire Department to enter into a renewal of the existing 
Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) with Yavapai County Office of 
Emergency Management that establishes Unified Emergency 
Management for the tri-city area and authorizing the Mayor and staff to 
take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the above. 

 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 4 
 

 B. Approval of the minutes of the Prescott City Council Budget Workshop of 
May 17, 2011, and the Regular Meeting of May 24, 2011.  

 
III.   REGULAR AGENDA 
 

A.   Recap by Todd Sadow of the Whiskey Off-Road Event. 
 
Todd Sadow said that they achieved the goals that they hoped to achieve. 
He said that the event got a good review amongst the industry and the 
community, for the most part. He said that they took an event of 1,000 
people and it jumped to almost 1,500 people. He noted that the last time 
that happened, they had Lance Armstrong involved. He thanked the City 
for taking them to the next level. He said that there was no doubt that 
mountain bikers from North America knew about Prescott. 

 
He showed a video and said that a seven minute version of it would be 
seen to 20,000 - 30,000 viewers before next year’s event. He reviewed 
the statistics and said that they grew by 48 percent and had 1333 starters 
on the ride day.  
 
He noted that they had a 12 percent response on the survey. He said that 
the out of stated numbers grew by 6 percent and the riders from Prescott 
grew from 2 percent to 10 percent, which meant that they were building a 
community of bikers. 

  
He said that the number of nights that people stayed in Prescott dropped 
off for one night stays by 13 percent and grew by 12 percent for two night 
stays. He noted that groups purchasing three meals or less went down 
12%.  

 
The number of people who had ridden in the event three or more years 
went up six percent. He said that they want more new people and six 
percent growth was good and they wanted to make sure that they were 
bringing fresh faces to Prescott.   

 
He noted that the Black Owls did not draw much of a crowd to their 
concert, but L10 Eleven brought in more people and it was a mid-day 
band. He said that it was a learning year for the concerts.  

 
He said that 91% said they’d return for a non event and 87% said that 
they would recommend Prescott.   

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if the issues with the disgruntled downtown 
businesses had been resolved. Mr. Sadow said that there was a Town 
Hall the previous evening and the concerns seemed to be based around 
communications regarding closures and sometimes very niche oriented 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 5 
 

concerns. He noted that a lot seemed easy to resolve and sometimes it 
was difficult to work around an event and he would appreciate the 
business owners’ patience.  

 
He said that there were things they had not done that they could do, such 
as marketing all of the stores on the square.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall noted that the Mini Town Hall was the start of a 
dialogue that they could work from. He said that they would find a way to 
accommodate those who were put out.  

 
Councilwoman Lopas thanked Mr. Sadow for the event and said that she 
looked forward to it growing. She said that some of the concern was the 
three day closure and it was a learning experience. She said that she 
understood the complaints of the businesses, but when 91 percent said 
that they would come back, that was a solid number. She said that even 
though a sale may not have been made on that weekend, it would be 
made the next time they came back. She said that everyone needed to 
give it more of a chance and that the businesses should be out there 
marketing themselves. 

 
Councilwoman Linn said that events were tough to grow and she 
congratulated him. She asked if the video would be on YouTube.  
Mr. Sadow said that it would.  

 
Councilman Lamerson said that things changed and they had to look at 
other ways to make money. He said that it looked like a good event and 
was thankful that Prescott was offered the opportunity. He noted that 
Prescott was on the track to something different. 

 
Councilman Blair thanked Mr. Sadow for the event and the presentation of 
what the Whiskey Off-Road meant to the community. He said that the City 
was working toward a better opportunity. 

 
Mr. Sadow said that they were looking toward the 9th Annual from April 27 
to April 29, 2012. He said that he had seen other events pop up in the last 
two months to copy them. He said that they should put a growth increase 
of 15 percent on next year’s attendance. He said that if they could 
increase the cash purse they could expand the reach in the European 
market. He noted that the former world champion had just jumped into 
that distance. He added that this year’s economic impact was $1.9 million. 
He complimented the Streets Department and the Prescott Police 
Department.  

 
He said they were at a great place with the City and did not take their 
contribution for granted. He said that they did not want the City to be the 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 6 
 

sole sponsor. He noted that to go out and get the private dollars, they 
would need a multi-year agreement with the City. He said that five years 
would be great which would allow a corporate sponsor to come in and 
match that. He said that it would be hard for anyone to chase them at that 
point.  

 
He said that they would like to have something by the August 1, 2011, 
timeframe so they could take advantage of ten solid months of 
advertising. 

 
Councilwoman Linn suggested that as part of the Whiskey Off-Road, they 
should contemplate doing some event or donation for the Granite Dells 
Foundation to help them get a jump start. She noted that they were trying 
to do hands on things to develop the Open Space. She noted that some 
of the races that she had done before would help give back to the 
community. She noted that the organization had provided a lot of the 
trails.  Mr. Sadow said that he thought it was a good suggestion.  

 
Mr. Jaspers said that he handed out 145 fliers on Friday and got about 60 
people. He said that it was the most mature discussion he had ever had 
with a large group about a street closure. He said that there were quite a 
few people who did well and enjoyed the event. He noted that there were 
some positive suggestions to make it a little smoother. He noted that they 
had depended on passive tourism in the past and that was changing. He 
said that people came to be entertained. He noted that it would change 
their approach to tourism. He said that it was as well run event. 

 
Bill Feldmeier, Prescott, thanked the City for taking a risk. He said that 
there was no pattern to look at. He said that he knew that it would grow 
more and more. He also thanked the Prescott Downtown Partnership. He 
said that he sat through the Mini Town Hall and it was a surprisingly 
civilized discussion that could take them to better places.  

 
Paul Katan, Prescott, wanted to recognize Mr. Sadow and Epic Ride’s 
contributions in ways that people did not necessarily get to hear about. He 
said that he was the Board Secretary for Prescott Mountain Bike Alliance 
(PIMBA) and he said that due to the event, they had seen an amazing 
growing enthusiasm among local mountain bikers and people interested in 
local trails. He said that he got to meet Mark Weir, a well known downhill 
mountain bike rider, who talked about getting a pump track in the area. He 
noted that they were low maintenance.  
 
Mr. Katan said that they applied for a grant through the International 
Mountain Bike Association and Fox Shocks to get something in the 
community for the kids. He said that the kids were getting into mountain 
biking because their parents were into it. He noted that they had a 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 7 
 

burgeoning mountain bike team at Northpoint Expeditionary Learning 
Academy and Mr. Sadow waived their fees for the 15 mile fun ride for 
them, so they could experience racing. He said that the lady riders who 
rode with them got to spend time with the professional lady riders.  

 
He said in terms of events, PIMBA was planning an October 14 – 16, a 
community festival to bring people to the area to feature the trails.  

 
He noted that they had received a donation of a beautiful full suspension 
frame from Pivot and raffled that off. Of the funds they raised, they gave 
$500 to Yavapai County Food Bank. He said that they really appreciated 
everything that Mr. Sadow was doing.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that Mr. Sadow would be back in a month to 
continue the conversation. He said that on the 50 mile trail, there was 
about a 3 hour lapse when the guys headed out and when they started 
coming back, which might give the local bikers time to do a family event.  
He noted that next year was the Centennial and he suggested planning a 
Centennial 100 miler. He said that it could be a separate international 
event.   

 
Mr. Sadow said that he thought it was a great idea to have a family event 
between the 50 milers. He said that there was a conversation to have 
concerning the Centennial event. 

                 
 B. Renewal of insurance policies for FY12. 
 

Ms. Swain said that there were three City insurances that were up for 
renewal.   

   
COUNCILMAN HANNA MOVED TO APPROVE PURCHASE OF THE 
FOLLOWING INSURANCE POLICIES FOR FY2012: 1) EXCESS 
PUBLIC ENTITY LIABILITY FROM TRAVELERS TO INCLUDE THE 
$100,000 SELF-INSURED RETENTION (SIR) AND AGGREGATE 
COVERAGE OPTIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF $551,823.00; 
2), PROPERTY COVERAGE FROM TRAVELERS INDEMNITY 
COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT OF $116,500.00; AND 3) EXCESS 
WORKER’S COMPENSATION COVERAGE FROM SAFETY NATIONAL 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $44,847.00; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN 
LAMERSON; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.   

 
 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 8 
 

C.   Adoption of Resolution No. 4082-1152 – A resolution of the Mayor and 
Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the 
City of Prescott to enter into an Animal Sheltering Service Agreement with 
Yavapai Humane Society, and authorizing the Mayor and staff to take any 
and all steps necessary to accomplish the above. 

 
Chief Kabbel noted that the Police Department requested approval of a 
service agreement. He noted that the purpose of the agreement was to 
formalize specific animal sheltering and control services to be provided by 
the Yavapai Humane Society (YHS) as needed. He noted that YHS would 
continue to maintain the City owned structure known as the Prescott 
Animal Control Center located on Sundog Ranch Road. He said that the 
term of the agreement would be for a two year period from July 1, 2011, 
to June 30, 2013. He said that the City would pay $59,334 per year, which 
was an increase of $10,000 from the prior year. 

 
Ed Boks, Director of the Yavapai Humane Society, said that a new cattery 
had been made possible by a donation from Betty Schultadt. 

 
He said that regarding the contract it was important to understand that 
when the YHS entered into the contract he could find no evidence of any 
cost analysis. He noted that over the past 11 months they had performed 
that and on a conservative side the actual cost was $90,000. YHS would 
be subsidizing $31,000 for animal control services. He said that it was just 
for strays. He said that he would give an annual report. He said that 
Prescott was likely the most humane community in the Southwest.  

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if the of $10,000 would be for the next two 
years or just one year. Mr. Boks said that it would be $10,000 per year.  
She asked if Prescott Valley had the same contract with them, for the 
same amount.  Mr. Boks said that it was not the same dollar amount as 
the contract was negotiated on a percentage of animals coming into the 
facility. He said that Prescott brought in 10.62% and Prescott Valley was 
12.11%.      

 
Mr. Boks said that as they were negotiating those contracts with Prescott, 
Prescott Valley and Yavapai County they were very cognizant of the fiscal 
realities. They wanted to work out an incremental plan until they got to the 
full cost recovery.  

 
Councilman Lamerson said that he appreciated what they were doing and 
the numbers he was hearing. He said that he felt blessed to live in a 
community that would take the lead and show that they thought a lot more 
of their animals than to kill over half.  

 
Councilwoman Lopas thanked them for the work they did.  



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 9 
 

 
Councilman Blair asked if they had any communication with people who 
did this for profit. Mr. Bok said that in the last legislative session, there 
was a bill that would make it illegal to sell animals in public sectors; 
unfortunately the legislature committee that oversaw that bill would not let 
it be heard. Councilman Blair said that he had seen people trying to sell 
animals on the Courthouse Square. 

 
Councilwoman Linn said that the veterinarians were not getting the spay 
and neuter business because YHS provided the business. Mr. Bok said 
that the Hassayampa Resort was a huge supporter of theirs. He said that 
he met with the veterinarians in the community and they addressed that 
issue. He said that studies had shown that spay and neuter clinics had 
increased veterinary services by 13 percent.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that the YHS agreed to collect all fees imposed by 
the City. He asked what the recovery to the City was. Mr. Boks said that 
with fees alone it was $11,842.  

 
COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 
4082-1152; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that with Council approval, they would go to the 
Post Executive Session Item A on the agenda. He noted that they were 
going to have an Executive Session, but had decided not to do that.  

 
V.* POST EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 A. Possible action on procedure to fill Councilwoman Linn’s vacancy. 
 

Mr. Kidd said that they had done some research in terms of replacing 
Councilwoman Linn’s vacancy. He said that the process would be 
governed by the City Charter and State Statutes. He said that it would 
seem relatively simple on the surface, however once there was a vacancy 
the Council had 31 days to decide whether to appoint someone by the 
appointment process. He noted that there was a preexisting City 
Resolution that dealt with how to fill that position.  

 
He noted that if they decided not to do the replacement with a Council 
vote, they would have to have a Special Election within 150 days from the 
time that seat was vacated.  

 
Ms. Burke said that Resolution 3232 outlining the appointment policy was 
adopted by Council on February 8, 2000. She then read the policy. 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 10 
 

Mr. Kidd said that the other process was that Yavapai County was 
contracted to handle the election process and that Ana Wayman-Trujillo 
was there to discuss some of the issues.  

 
Ms. Wayman-Trujillo, Yavapai County Recorder, said that they had 
missed the Call of Election for a Special Election for the August Election 
date that the City had set.  

 
Mr. Kidd said that they needed to have an election at the next regular 
election. He said that they needed to go through an election process 
because the term was greater than the two year term.   

 
He said that they needed to have an interim appointment through 
November and then consideration of the processes and procedures in 
conjunction with the County in order to have the election. He said that 
Staff’s recommendation was to set up some time with the County and 
recommend an election process to the Council along with the legal issues.  
 
He said that given the election timeframes, he would discuss the item 
further the following Tuesday and at that point they could decide what 
actual steps to take. 

 
Councilman Lamerson appreciated that they were taking the time to do it 
right.  

 
Councilwoman Linn said that if they were going to do it with the General 
Election, she suggested doing a Charter Amendment on this so they 
would not have to go through the process again.  

 
Mr. Kidd said that there was a new change in State Law that lined out the 
time frame if there was a vacancy in office 30 days before the time frame 
started, it would go to the next election cycle. He noted that the new 
statute did not go into effect until July 20, 2011, and did not apply to 
charter cities.  

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if there were some other Charter changes 
and if they could be voted on at the same time. Councilwoman Linn said 
that she thought it was a good idea.   

 
Mr. McConnell said that the General Election was November 8 and they 
backed off 120 days that would be July 4. He noted that there was a very 
tight time frame to consider any Charter Amendments.   

 
Councilman Blair asked how the Council would handle an appointee for 
the interim position. Mr. Kidd said that the process was an 
advertising/interview process. Councilman Blair said the sooner the better.  



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 11 
 

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that it was the first discussion they have had.  
She thought that they should be ready the following Tuesday.  
Councilwoman Lopas said that because it did not state how to appoint 
someone, they should take a look at that.   

 
Councilman Lamerson agreed with them and thought they should look 
into it a little more. Councilwoman Linn said that this was not the first time 
that this had happened. Ms. Burke said that when those other individuals 
left, they left before the petition process had started.  

 
Mr. Kidd said that there were some issues for the Council to consider. He 
said the issue was whether they wanted to start the interview process 
then, they would make a decision to appoint and they could make it 
effective upon the vacancy of the office, which would be one way to do it. 
 
Councilman Blair said that it was real simple; he did not think that people 
would be inclined to fill a position as it got to be fewer months.  
 
Mr. Kidd said that by advertising early they had more advertising time and 
more time to set up interviews and make an informed decision. 
Councilman Lamerson said that they should just get started.  

 
COUNCILWOMAN LINN MOVED TO DIRECT THE CITY CLERK TO 
ADVERTISE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT COUNCIL 
POLICY REGARDING THE FILLING OF COUNCIL VACANCIES, 
RESOLUTION 3232, FOR A VACANCY ON THE PRESCOTT CITY 
COUNCIL WITH A TERM OF JULY 15, 2011 THROUGH 
NOVEMBER 22, 2011 WITH APPLICATIONS BY INTERESTED 
INDIVIDUALS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE BY 
5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY JULY 1, 2011; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN 
HANNA. 

 
 Mr. Mattson said that he agreed with Councilman Blair and there was no 
reason to put it off.  

 
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.    

 
D.  Adoption of Resolution No. 4084-1154 – A resolution of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the 
City of Prescott to enter into a Fourth Amendment to the Memorandum of 
Understanding, Contract No. 03-265, with the Central Yavapai 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (CYMPO), providing for a two-year 
extension of the Memorandum of Understanding, and authorizing the 
Mayor and staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the 
above. 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 12 
 

 
Mr. McConnell said that CYMPO had requested the item. He said that it 
was a two-year extension of the services the City of Prescott provided to 
CYMPO via a Memorandum of Understanding. He said that the services 
were procurement, personnel and accounting services on a reimbursable 
basis. Nothing was being proposed to change other than the expiration of 
the agreement which would be June 30, 2013. 

 
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 
4084-1154; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
Councilman Blair asked what would happen if they had someone from the 
Board of Adjustment or the Planning Commission who was interested in 
filling the seat. He asked if they would have to resign or take a leave of 
absence. Mr. Kidd said that he would look into it and would bring answers 
the following week. 

 
 E.  Adoption of Resolution No. 4085-1155 – A resolution of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, approving the 
transfer of FY2011 unencumbered appropriations from the Grants Fund to 
the Miscellaneous Gifts & Donations Fund and Self-Insurance Fund. 

 
Mr. Woodfill said that they had discussed the issue at the Midyear Budget 
Retreat and at the Budget Workshop. He noted that one of the funds was 
the Miscellaneous Gifts Fund which was used to account for various items 
like Shop with a Cop or gifts that were given through wills to different 
functions of the City. He said there was the change in reserves and how 
they handled their claims using outside council. He said they had $90,000 
to move to the Miscellaneous Gifts Fund and $975,000 to the Self 
Insurance Risk Fund. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that he did not understand it. He asked if they 
were using the funds in the spirit of the gift. Mr. Woodfill said yes. He 
noted that each year they estimated a number of miscellaneous gifts. The 
amount budgeted was not sufficient for everything spent because they 
had a large gift. He noted that this was a movement of budget 
appropriation spending authority. He said that it was not a movement of 
money. The monies were used in the library. He said that through their 
Charter they could not spend things that were not budgeted. 

 
 Mayor Kuykendall said that if they did not have the ability to appropriate 

the funds and someone gave the Library $90,000, they would have to wait 
until the next year to budget the expenditure.   

 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 13 
 

 COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 
4085-1155; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
F. Adoption of Resolution No. 4086-1156 – A resolution of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, adopting a 
Tentative Budget, adopting the estimated amounts required to meet the 
public expenses for the City of Prescott for the Fiscal Year 2011-12, 
authorizing and directing publication of Statements and Schedules of the 
Tentative Budget, together with Notice of Hearing on said Budget and 
Notice of Date of Final Adoption of said Budget, and Notice of Date of 
Establishment of the Expenditure Limitation, and Notice of the Date for 
Fixing a Tax Levy. 
 
Mr. Woodfill noted that the first Public Workshop was on May 17, 2011, 
and the follow-up was on May 31, 2011. He said that it was the first official 
adoption of the Tentative Budget. He noted that 45 percent of the 
Operating Budget was personnel, 7 percent was supplies, 36 percent was 
other services and 12 percent was debt service.  
 
He said that in the General Fund, personnel was 77 percent, supplies 4 
percent, other service 19 percent and below 1 percent for debt service. 
 
He also went over the budgets for:  
 

 SELF-INSURANCE FUND 
 

 LEGAL DEPARTMENT 
 

 OUTSIDE LEGAL SERVICES  
 

 ADJUSTMENTS 
 

 TOTAL BUDGET 
 

 REMAINING STEPS 
 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if the $60,000 for the Rodeo Ground 
Improvements was part of the Master Plan.  Councilman Blair said that he 
thought that it was for the repair of the steps and roof. Mr. McConnell said 
that he was correct and that it was not related to the Master Plan.  
 
Mayor Kuykendall said that they put it in the budget so they would be 
covered if they had to do those things. He said that it was not a done deal. 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 14 
 

Mayor Kuykendall asked how the City handled their portion of the grant for 
the airport. Mr. Vardiman said that the City’s portion was about 2.5 
percent or $57,000 which was coming from the Capital Improvement 
Fund. Mr. Vardiman said that the grant was 95 percent funded by the 
Federal Aviation Administration and 2.5 percent by the State Aeronautics 
Group. 
 
Councilman Lamerson said that just because they had appropriated the 
money, it did not mean that they had to spend it if the conditions had 
changed. Mr. Woodfill said that he was correct.  

 
COUNCILWOMAN LINN MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4086-
1156; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BLAIR; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
G.* Recess into Executive Session 
 
 No Executive Session was held. 
 

IV.*  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

A.  Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or 
attorneys of the public body, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(3). 

 
1. Legal Processes and Procedures to fill Councilwoman Linn’s 

vacancy. 
 
V.* POST EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 A. Possible action on procedure to fill Councilwoman Linn’s vacancy. 

 
 This item was moved up on the agenda. See Page 9 for discussion and 

action taken. 
 

IVI.*  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be discussed, the Regular Voting Meeting of 
June 14, 2011, adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 
 

 
 
________________________________ 

       MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011                                                             Page 15 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the Regular Voting Meeting of the City Council of the City of Prescott, Arizona held on 
the 14th day of June, 2011. I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this ____ day of ___________________, 2011. 
 
 AFFIX 
       CITY SEAL  
       ________________________________  

      ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Prescott City Council 


Regular Voting Meeting – June 14, 2011
                                                             Page 15



  







PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL









REGULAR VOTING MEETING










TUESDAY, JUNE 14, 2011









PRESCOTT, ARIZONA


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR VOTING MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL held on JUNE 14, 2011 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 


( 
CALL TO ORDER



Mayor Kuykendall called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m.


(        INTRODUCTIONS 


(
INVOCATION:
Reverend Julia McKenna Johnson


Reverend McKenna Johnson gave the invocation.

( 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 Councilman Hanna


Councilman Hanna led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

( 
ROLL CALL:






Present:





Absent:

Mayor Kuykendall




None

Councilman Blair





Councilman Hanna





Councilman Lamerson



Councilwoman Linn

Councilwoman Lopas

Councilwoman Suttles



· SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS

Councilwoman Linn read her Letter of Resignation. Mayor Kuykendall thanked her and said she would be missed.


I.
PRESENTATION



A.
Presentation by Judge Markham re SB 1398 and potential financial impact on the City.



Judge Markham, said that the State Legislature passed a new law which added a new $13 surcharge to any fine imposed in court, from parking tickets to Driving While under the Influence (DUI’s), etc. He noted that there was currently an 84% surcharge.  

He showed an overhead and said that a generic $180 fine showed $100 going to the City Fund. He noted that roughly $11 went to the same fund for a $20 parking ticket. 

He noted that if the fee was left as is, the revenue to the City would go down and he discussed alternatives. 

He said that he talked with other judges and as a general rule they were going to add the $13 to the other fines. He noted that he had a fine booklet with roughly 250 different fines. 


He said that there was the suggestion that with parking tickets, a new map could be included on how to get to the parking structure and inform citizens that it was a state imposed surcharge.

Councilwoman Suttles said that she did not see much wiggle room unless the City took money out of the General Fund. She said that she was concerned with what would happen in the future. Judge Markham said that the County and cities across the state were having the same mandates coming down from above. He said that the way it was going that the surcharge would be more than the ticket.   


Councilman Hanna asked where Prescott ranked as far as parking tickets with other municipalities. Judge Markham said that two to three years ago Prescott was on the lighter end of things. He noted that Prescott would charge $20 for overtime parking while others charged $50 to $75.

Councilman Hanna said that he would vote to add the $13.00 on to the fine. He said that he understood that the Department of Public Safety equipment was a necessity. He added that he would be happy to give the Border Security $4.00 anytime they wanted it to keep the borders secure. 

Councilman Blair said that he wanted to make sure a map was included with every ticket. He would vote to add on the $13.00. Judge Markham said that the Police Department would print the new parking tickets with a statement about the $13.00 and they would include a separate map to the parking garage to say that there was free parking. Council Lamerson asked who would pay for the maps. Judge Markham said that it would come from the City budgets. 

Councilman Lamerson said that he did not agree with subsidizing the State to help them balance their budget. He and Councilwoman Linn agreed to add the $13.00.

Mayor Kuykendall asked if the City was having trouble collecting $20 tickets, what would happen with a $33 ticket. Judge Markham said that on a monthly basis he signed dismissal orders because there was no way to tie a car to a person. He said that it was the registered owner of the vehicle who got the ticket. He said that if the registered owner did not pay the ticket, it would be sent off to collections and the owner would get a negative credit report. He said that the amounts of tickets that were paid were significant.


Daniel Mattson, Prescott, said that if people chose to violate the parking code, they should tack another $1 on for the cost of the map and let them pay for that as well.


Mayor Kuykendall asked when the item would come back to Council.  Acting City Manager McConnell said it would be the meeting of June 21, 2011. 

Judge Markham said that new parking tickets had to be printed. He said that the officers needed to have them by July 20, 2011.

II.  
CONSENT AGENDA


CONSENT ITEMS A – B LISTED BELOW MAY BE ENACTED BY ONE MOTION. ANY ITEM MAY BE REMOVED AND DISCUSSED IF A COUNCILMEMBER SO REQUESTS.


COUNCILMAN BLAIR MOVED TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS II-A AND II-B; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

A.
Adoption of Resolution No. 4083-1153 – A resolution of the Mayor and council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the City of Prescott Fire Department to enter into a renewal of the existing Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) with Yavapai County Office of Emergency Management that establishes Unified Emergency Management for the tri-city area and authorizing the Mayor and staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the above.



B.
Approval of the minutes of the Prescott City Council Budget Workshop of May 17, 2011, and the Regular Meeting of May 24, 2011. 

III.  
REGULAR AGENDA

A.  
Recap by Todd Sadow of the Whiskey Off-Road Event.


Todd Sadow said that they achieved the goals that they hoped to achieve. He said that the event got a good review amongst the industry and the community, for the most part. He said that they took an event of 1,000 people and it jumped to almost 1,500 people. He noted that the last time that happened, they had Lance Armstrong involved. He thanked the City for taking them to the next level. He said that there was no doubt that mountain bikers from North America knew about Prescott.


He showed a video and said that a seven minute version of it would be seen to 20,000 - 30,000 viewers before next year’s event. He reviewed the statistics and said that they grew by 48 percent and had 1333 starters on the ride day. 

He noted that they had a 12 percent response on the survey. He said that the out of stated numbers grew by 6 percent and the riders from Prescott grew from 2 percent to 10 percent, which meant that they were building a community of bikers.

He said that the number of nights that people stayed in Prescott dropped off for one night stays by 13 percent and grew by 12 percent for two night stays. He noted that groups purchasing three meals or less went down 12%. 


The number of people who had ridden in the event three or more years went up six percent. He said that they want more new people and six percent growth was good and they wanted to make sure that they were bringing fresh faces to Prescott.  


He noted that the Black Owls did not draw much of a crowd to their concert, but L10 Eleven brought in more people and it was a mid-day band. He said that it was a learning year for the concerts. 

He said that 91% said they’d return for a non event and 87% said that they would recommend Prescott.  


Councilwoman Suttles asked if the issues with the disgruntled downtown businesses had been resolved. Mr. Sadow said that there was a Town Hall the previous evening and the concerns seemed to be based around communications regarding closures and sometimes very niche oriented concerns. He noted that a lot seemed easy to resolve and sometimes it was difficult to work around an event and he would appreciate the business owners’ patience. 

He said that there were things they had not done that they could do, such as marketing all of the stores on the square. 


Mayor Kuykendall noted that the Mini Town Hall was the start of a dialogue that they could work from. He said that they would find a way to accommodate those who were put out. 


Councilwoman Lopas thanked Mr. Sadow for the event and said that she looked forward to it growing. She said that some of the concern was the three day closure and it was a learning experience. She said that she understood the complaints of the businesses, but when 91 percent said that they would come back, that was a solid number. She said that even though a sale may not have been made on that weekend, it would be made the next time they came back. She said that everyone needed to give it more of a chance and that the businesses should be out there marketing themselves.

Councilwoman Linn said that events were tough to grow and she congratulated him. She asked if the video would be on YouTube.  Mr. Sadow said that it would. 

Councilman Lamerson said that things changed and they had to look at other ways to make money. He said that it looked like a good event and was thankful that Prescott was offered the opportunity. He noted that Prescott was on the track to something different.

Councilman Blair thanked Mr. Sadow for the event and the presentation of what the Whiskey Off-Road meant to the community. He said that the City was working toward a better opportunity.


Mr. Sadow said that they were looking toward the 9th Annual from April 27 to April 29, 2012. He said that he had seen other events pop up in the last two months to copy them. He said that they should put a growth increase of 15 percent on next year’s attendance. He said that if they could increase the cash purse they could expand the reach in the European market. He noted that the former world champion had just jumped into that distance. He added that this year’s economic impact was $1.9 million. He complimented the Streets Department and the Prescott Police Department. 


He said they were at a great place with the City and did not take their contribution for granted. He said that they did not want the City to be the sole sponsor. He noted that to go out and get the private dollars, they would need a multi-year agreement with the City. He said that five years would be great which would allow a corporate sponsor to come in and match that. He said that it would be hard for anyone to chase them at that point. 

He said that they would like to have something by the August 1, 2011, timeframe so they could take advantage of ten solid months of advertising.


Councilwoman Linn suggested that as part of the Whiskey Off-Road, they should contemplate doing some event or donation for the Granite Dells Foundation to help them get a jump start. She noted that they were trying to do hands on things to develop the Open Space. She noted that some of the races that she had done before would help give back to the community. She noted that the organization had provided a lot of the trails.  Mr. Sadow said that he thought it was a good suggestion. 

Mr. Jaspers said that he handed out 145 fliers on Friday and got about 60 people. He said that it was the most mature discussion he had ever had with a large group about a street closure. He said that there were quite a few people who did well and enjoyed the event. He noted that there were some positive suggestions to make it a little smoother. He noted that they had depended on passive tourism in the past and that was changing. He said that people came to be entertained. He noted that it would change their approach to tourism. He said that it was as well run event.


Bill Feldmeier, Prescott, thanked the City for taking a risk. He said that there was no pattern to look at. He said that he knew that it would grow more and more. He also thanked the Prescott Downtown Partnership. He said that he sat through the Mini Town Hall and it was a surprisingly civilized discussion that could take them to better places. 


Paul Katan, Prescott, wanted to recognize Mr. Sadow and Epic Ride’s contributions in ways that people did not necessarily get to hear about. He said that he was the Board Secretary for Prescott Mountain Bike Alliance (PIMBA) and he said that due to the event, they had seen an amazing growing enthusiasm among local mountain bikers and people interested in local trails. He said that he got to meet Mark Weir, a well known downhill mountain bike rider, who talked about getting a pump track in the area. He noted that they were low maintenance. 


Mr. Katan said that they applied for a grant through the International Mountain Bike Association and Fox Shocks to get something in the community for the kids. He said that the kids were getting into mountain biking because their parents were into it. He noted that they had a burgeoning mountain bike team at Northpoint Expeditionary Learning Academy and Mr. Sadow waived their fees for the 15 mile fun ride for them, so they could experience racing. He said that the lady riders who rode with them got to spend time with the professional lady riders. 


He said in terms of events, PIMBA was planning an October 14 – 16, a community festival to bring people to the area to feature the trails. 


He noted that they had received a donation of a beautiful full suspension frame from Pivot and raffled that off. Of the funds they raised, they gave $500 to Yavapai County Food Bank. He said that they really appreciated everything that Mr. Sadow was doing. 

Mayor Kuykendall said that Mr. Sadow would be back in a month to continue the conversation. He said that on the 50 mile trail, there was about a 3 hour lapse when the guys headed out and when they started coming back, which might give the local bikers time to do a family event.  He noted that next year was the Centennial and he suggested planning a Centennial 100 miler. He said that it could be a separate international event.  


Mr. Sadow said that he thought it was a great idea to have a family event between the 50 milers. He said that there was a conversation to have concerning the Centennial event.


B.
Renewal of insurance policies for FY12.


Ms. Swain said that there were three City insurances that were up for renewal. 



COUNCILMAN HANNA MOVED TO APPROVE PURCHASE OF THE FOLLOWING INSURANCE POLICIES FOR FY2012: 1) EXCESS PUBLIC ENTITY LIABILITY FROM TRAVELERS TO INCLUDE THE $100,000 SELF-INSURED RETENTION (SIR) AND AGGREGATE COVERAGE OPTIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF $551,823.00; 2), PROPERTY COVERAGE FROM TRAVELERS INDEMNITY COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT OF $116,500.00; AND 3) EXCESS WORKER’S COMPENSATION COVERAGE FROM SAFETY NATIONAL IN THE AMOUNT OF $44,847.00; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  


C.  
Adoption of Resolution No. 4082-1152 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the City of Prescott to enter into an Animal Sheltering Service Agreement with Yavapai Humane Society, and authorizing the Mayor and staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the above.


Chief Kabbel noted that the Police Department requested approval of a service agreement. He noted that the purpose of the agreement was to formalize specific animal sheltering and control services to be provided by the Yavapai Humane Society (YHS) as needed. He noted that YHS would continue to maintain the City owned structure known as the Prescott Animal Control Center located on Sundog Ranch Road. He said that the term of the agreement would be for a two year period from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2013. He said that the City would pay $59,334 per year, which was an increase of $10,000 from the prior year.

Ed Boks, Director of the Yavapai Humane Society, said that a new cattery had been made possible by a donation from Betty Schultadt.

He said that regarding the contract it was important to understand that when the YHS entered into the contract he could find no evidence of any cost analysis. He noted that over the past 11 months they had performed that and on a conservative side the actual cost was $90,000. YHS would be subsidizing $31,000 for animal control services. He said that it was just for strays. He said that he would give an annual report. He said that Prescott was likely the most humane community in the Southwest. 

Councilwoman Suttles asked if the of $10,000 would be for the next two years or just one year. Mr. Boks said that it would be $10,000 per year.  She asked if Prescott Valley had the same contract with them, for the same amount.  Mr. Boks said that it was not the same dollar amount as the contract was negotiated on a percentage of animals coming into the facility. He said that Prescott brought in 10.62% and Prescott Valley was 12.11%.     


Mr. Boks said that as they were negotiating those contracts with Prescott, Prescott Valley and Yavapai County they were very cognizant of the fiscal realities. They wanted to work out an incremental plan until they got to the full cost recovery. 


Councilman Lamerson said that he appreciated what they were doing and the numbers he was hearing. He said that he felt blessed to live in a community that would take the lead and show that they thought a lot more of their animals than to kill over half. 


Councilwoman Lopas thanked them for the work they did. 

Councilman Blair asked if they had any communication with people who did this for profit. Mr. Bok said that in the last legislative session, there was a bill that would make it illegal to sell animals in public sectors; unfortunately the legislature committee that oversaw that bill would not let it be heard. Councilman Blair said that he had seen people trying to sell animals on the Courthouse Square.

Councilwoman Linn said that the veterinarians were not getting the spay and neuter business because YHS provided the business. Mr. Bok said that the Hassayampa Resort was a huge supporter of theirs. He said that he met with the veterinarians in the community and they addressed that issue. He said that studies had shown that spay and neuter clinics had increased veterinary services by 13 percent. 

Mayor Kuykendall said that the YHS agreed to collect all fees imposed by the City. He asked what the recovery to the City was. Mr. Boks said that with fees alone it was $11,842. 

COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4082-1152; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Mayor Kuykendall said that with Council approval, they would go to the Post Executive Session Item A on the agenda. He noted that they were going to have an Executive Session, but had decided not to do that. 


V.*
POST EXECUTIVE SESSION



A.
Possible action on procedure to fill Councilwoman Linn’s vacancy.


Mr. Kidd said that they had done some research in terms of replacing Councilwoman Linn’s vacancy. He said that the process would be governed by the City Charter and State Statutes. He said that it would seem relatively simple on the surface, however once there was a vacancy the Council had 31 days to decide whether to appoint someone by the appointment process. He noted that there was a preexisting City Resolution that dealt with how to fill that position. 

He noted that if they decided not to do the replacement with a Council vote, they would have to have a Special Election within 150 days from the time that seat was vacated. 

Ms. Burke said that Resolution 3232 outlining the appointment policy was adopted by Council on February 8, 2000. She then read the policy.


Mr. Kidd said that the other process was that Yavapai County was contracted to handle the election process and that Ana Wayman-Trujillo was there to discuss some of the issues. 

Ms. Wayman-Trujillo, Yavapai County Recorder, said that they had missed the Call of Election for a Special Election for the August Election date that the City had set. 

Mr. Kidd said that they needed to have an election at the next regular election. He said that they needed to go through an election process because the term was greater than the two year term.
 


He said that they needed to have an interim appointment through November and then consideration of the processes and procedures in conjunction with the County in order to have the election. He said that Staff’s recommendation was to set up some time with the County and recommend an election process to the Council along with the legal issues. 

He said that given the election timeframes, he would discuss the item further the following Tuesday and at that point they could decide what actual steps to take.


Councilman Lamerson appreciated that they were taking the time to do it right. 

Councilwoman Linn said that if they were going to do it with the General Election, she suggested doing a Charter Amendment on this so they would not have to go through the process again. 

Mr. Kidd said that there was a new change in State Law that lined out the time frame if there was a vacancy in office 30 days before the time frame started, it would go to the next election cycle. He noted that the new statute did not go into effect until July 20, 2011, and did not apply to charter cities. 


Councilwoman Suttles asked if there were some other Charter changes and if they could be voted on at the same time. Councilwoman Linn said that she thought it was a good idea.  


Mr. McConnell said that the General Election was November 8 and they backed off 120 days that would be July 4. He noted that there was a very tight time frame to consider any Charter Amendments.  

Councilman Blair asked how the Council would handle an appointee for the interim position. Mr. Kidd said that the process was an advertising/interview process. Councilman Blair said the sooner the better. 

Councilwoman Suttles said that it was the first discussion they have had.  She thought that they should be ready the following Tuesday.  Councilwoman Lopas said that because it did not state how to appoint someone, they should take a look at that.  


Councilman Lamerson agreed with them and thought they should look into it a little more. Councilwoman Linn said that this was not the first time that this had happened. Ms. Burke said that when those other individuals left, they left before the petition process had started. 

Mr. Kidd said that there were some issues for the Council to consider. He said the issue was whether they wanted to start the interview process then, they would make a decision to appoint and they could make it effective upon the vacancy of the office, which would be one way to do it.

Councilman Blair said that it was real simple; he did not think that people would be inclined to fill a position as it got to be fewer months. 


Mr. Kidd said that by advertising early they had more advertising time and more time to set up interviews and make an informed decision. Councilman Lamerson said that they should just get started. 

COUNCILWOMAN LINN MOVED TO DIRECT THE CITY CLERK TO ADVERTISE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT COUNCIL POLICY REGARDING THE FILLING OF COUNCIL VACANCIES, RESOLUTION 3232, FOR A VACANCY ON THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL WITH A TERM OF JULY 15, 2011 THROUGH NOVEMBER 22, 2011 WITH APPLICATIONS BY INTERESTED INDIVIDUALS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE BY 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY JULY 1, 2011; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN HANNA.

 Mr. Mattson said that he agreed with Councilman Blair and there was no reason to put it off. 


MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.   

D. 
Adoption of Resolution No. 4084-1154 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the City of Prescott to enter into a Fourth Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding, Contract No. 03-265, with the Central Yavapai Metropolitan Planning Organization (CYMPO), providing for a two-year extension of the Memorandum of Understanding, and authorizing the Mayor and staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the above.


Mr. McConnell said that CYMPO had requested the item. He said that it was a two-year extension of the services the City of Prescott provided to CYMPO via a Memorandum of Understanding. He said that the services were procurement, personnel and accounting services on a reimbursable basis. Nothing was being proposed to change other than the expiration of the agreement which would be June 30, 2013.


COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4084-1154; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Councilman Blair asked what would happen if they had someone from the Board of Adjustment or the Planning Commission who was interested in filling the seat. He asked if they would have to resign or take a leave of absence. Mr. Kidd said that he would look into it and would bring answers the following week.

 E. 
Adoption of Resolution No. 4085-1155 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, approving the transfer of FY2011 unencumbered appropriations from the Grants Fund to the Miscellaneous Gifts & Donations Fund and Self-Insurance Fund.

Mr. Woodfill said that they had discussed the issue at the Midyear Budget Retreat and at the Budget Workshop. He noted that one of the funds was the Miscellaneous Gifts Fund which was used to account for various items like Shop with a Cop or gifts that were given through wills to different functions of the City. He said there was the change in reserves and how they handled their claims using outside council. He said they had $90,000 to move to the Miscellaneous Gifts Fund and $975,000 to the Self Insurance Risk Fund.

Councilman Lamerson said that he did not understand it. He asked if they were using the funds in the spirit of the gift. Mr. Woodfill said yes. He noted that each year they estimated a number of miscellaneous gifts. The amount budgeted was not sufficient for everything spent because they had a large gift. He noted that this was a movement of budget appropriation spending authority. He said that it was not a movement of money. The monies were used in the library. He said that through their Charter they could not spend things that were not budgeted.


Mayor Kuykendall said that if they did not have the ability to appropriate the funds and someone gave the Library $90,000, they would have to wait until the next year to budget the expenditure.  



COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4085-1155; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LINN; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

F. Adoption of Resolution No. 4086-1156 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, adopting a Tentative Budget, adopting the estimated amounts required to meet the public expenses for the City of Prescott for the Fiscal Year 2011-12, authorizing and directing publication of Statements and Schedules of the Tentative Budget, together with Notice of Hearing on said Budget and Notice of Date of Final Adoption of said Budget, and Notice of Date of Establishment of the Expenditure Limitation, and Notice of the Date for Fixing a Tax Levy.

Mr. Woodfill noted that the first Public Workshop was on May 17, 2011, and the follow-up was on May 31, 2011. He said that it was the first official adoption of the Tentative Budget. He noted that 45 percent of the Operating Budget was personnel, 7 percent was supplies, 36 percent was other services and 12 percent was debt service. 

He said that in the General Fund, personnel was 77 percent, supplies 4 percent, other service 19 percent and below 1 percent for debt service.

He also went over the budgets for: 

· SELF-INSURANCE FUND


· LEGAL DEPARTMENT


· OUTSIDE LEGAL SERVICES 

· ADJUSTMENTS


· TOTAL BUDGET

· REMAINING STEPS


Councilwoman Suttles asked if the $60,000 for the Rodeo Ground Improvements was part of the Master Plan.  Councilman Blair said that he thought that it was for the repair of the steps and roof. Mr. McConnell said that he was correct and that it was not related to the Master Plan. 

Mayor Kuykendall said that they put it in the budget so they would be covered if they had to do those things. He said that it was not a done deal.

Mayor Kuykendall asked how the City handled their portion of the grant for the airport. Mr. Vardiman said that the City’s portion was about 2.5 percent or $57,000 which was coming from the Capital Improvement Fund. Mr. Vardiman said that the grant was 95 percent funded by the Federal Aviation Administration and 2.5 percent by the State Aeronautics Group.

Councilman Lamerson said that just because they had appropriated the money, it did not mean that they had to spend it if the conditions had changed. Mr. Woodfill said that he was correct. 

COUNCILWOMAN LINN MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4086-1156; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BLAIR; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

G.*
Recess into Executive Session



No Executive Session was held.


IV.* 
EXECUTIVE SESSION


A. 
Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(3).


1. Legal Processes and Procedures to fill Councilwoman Linn’s vacancy.


V.*
POST EXECUTIVE SESSION



A.
Possible action on procedure to fill Councilwoman Linn’s vacancy.



This item was moved up on the agenda. See Page 9 for discussion and action taken.


IVI.* 
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, the Regular Voting Meeting of June 14, 2011, adjourned at 5:15 p.m.

________________________________









MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor


ATTEST:


______________________________


ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk

CERTIFICATION


I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Regular Voting Meeting of the City Council of the City of Prescott, Arizona held on the 14th day of June, 2011. I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.


Dated this ____ day of ___________________, 2011.



AFFIX


       CITY SEAL










________________________________ 








ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk













